
 

 

 
Date of issue: 15th July, 2014  

  

MEETING  LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 (Councillors Davis (Chair), Ajaib, Bains, Cheema, Coad, 

Malik, Mellor, Munawar, Rasib, Shah and Sohal) 
  
DATE AND TIME: WEDNESDAY, 23RD JULY, 2014 AT 6.30 PM 
  
VENUE: SAPPHIRE SUITE 5, THE CENTRE, FARNHAM ROAD, 

SLOUGH, SL1 4UT 
  
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
OFFICER: 
(for all enquiries) 

TERESA CLARK  
 
01753 875018 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are requested to attend the above Meeting at the time and date indicated to deal 
with the business set out in the following agenda. 

 
RUTH BAGLEY 
Chief Executive 

 
 
 

AGENDA 

 
PART I 

 
AGENDA 
ITEM 

REPORT TITLE PAGE WARD 

 Apologies for absence.   
 
 CONSTITUTIONAL MATTERS 

 
1.   Declarations of Interest 

 
  

 All Members who believe they have a Disclosable 
Pecuniary or other Pecuniary or non pecuniary Interest in 

  



 
AGENDA 
ITEM 

REPORT TITLE PAGE WARD 

 

 

any matter to be considered at the meeting must declare 
that interest and, having regard to the circumstances 
described in Section 3 paragraphs 3.25 – 3.27 of the 
Councillors’ Code of Conduct, leave the meeting while the 
matter is discussed, save for exercising any right to speak 
in accordance with Paragraph 3.28 of the Code.  
 
The Chair will ask Members to confirm that they do not have 
a declarable interest. 
 
All Members making a declaration will be required to 
complete a Declaration of Interests at Meetings form 
detailing the nature of their interest. 

 
2.   Guidance on Predetermination/ Predisposition - 

To Note 
 

1 - 2  

3.   Minutes of the Last Meeting held on 26th June 
2014 
 

3 - 4  

 LICENSING ISSUES 
 

4.   Law Commission Review and Recommendations 
for Taxi and Private Hire Services 
 

5 - 28 All 

5.   Revision of the Secretary of State Guidance-
Section 182 (June 2014) 
 

29 - 36 All 

6.   Members Attendance Record 2014/15 
 

37 - 38 - 

 
   

 Press and Public  
   

You are welcome to attend this meeting which is open to the press and public, as an observer. You will 
however be asked to leave before the Committee considers any items in the Part II agenda.  Please contact 
the Democratic Services Officer shown above for further details. 
 
The Council allows the filming, recording and photographing at its meetings that are open to the public.  
Anyone proposing to film, record or take photographs of a meeting is requested to advise the Democratic 
Services Officer before the start of the meeting.  Filming or recording must be overt and persons filming 
should not move around the meeting room whilst filming nor should they obstruct proceedings or the public 
from viewing the meeting.  The use of flash photography, additional lighting or any non hand held devices, 
including tripods, will not be allowed unless this has been discussed with the Democratic Services Officer.  
 

 



PREDETERMINATION/PREDISPOSITION - GUIDANCE 

 
The Council often has to make controversial decisions that affect people adversely and 
this can place individual members in a difficult position. They are expected to represent 
the interests of their constituents and political party and have strong views but it is also 
a well established legal principle that members who make these decisions must not be 
biased nor must they have pre-determined the outcome of the decision. This is 
especially so in “quasi judicial” decisions in planning and licensing committees. 
This Note seeks to provide guidance on what is legally permissible and when members 
may participate in decisions. It should be read alongside the Code of Conduct. 
 
Predisposition 
 
Predisposition is lawful. Members may have strong views on a proposed decision, and 
may have expressed those views in public, and still participate in a decision. This will 
include political views and manifesto commitments. The key issue is that the member 
ensures that their predisposition does not prevent them from consideration of all the 
other factors that are relevant to a decision, such as committee reports, supporting 
documents and the views of objectors. In other words, the member retains an “open 
mind”. 
 
Section 25 of the Localism Act 2011 confirms this position by providing that a decision 
will not be unlawful because of an allegation of bias or pre-determination “just because” 
a member has done anything that would indicate what view they may take in relation to 
a matter relevant to a decision. However, if a member has done something more than 
indicate a view on a decision, this may be unlawful bias or predetermination so it is 
important that advice is sought where this may be the case. 
 
Pre-determination / Bias  
 
Pre-determination and bias are unlawful and can make a decision unlawful. 
Predetermination means having a “closed mind”. In other words, a member has made 
his/her mind up on a decision before considering or hearing all the relevant evidence.  
Bias can also arise from a member’s relationships or interests, as well as their state of 
mind.  The Code of Conduct’s requirement to declare interests and withdraw from 
meetings prevents most obvious forms of bias, e.g. not deciding your own planning 
application.  However, members may also consider that a “non-pecuniary interest” 
under the Code also gives rise to a risk of what is called apparent bias. The legal test is: 
“whether the fair-minded and informed observer, having considered the facts, would 
conclude that there was a real possibility that the Committee was biased’.  A fair minded 
observer takes an objective and balanced view of the situation but Members who think 
that they have a relationship or interest that may raise a possibility of bias, should seek 
advice. 
 
This is a complex area and this note should be read as general guidance only. 
Members who need advice on individual decisions, should contact the Monitoring 
Officer. 

Page 1

AGENDA ITEM 2



This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing Committee – Meeting held on Thursday, 26th June, 2014. 
 

Present:-  Councillors Davis (Chair), Ajaib, Bains, Cheema, Malik, Mellor, 
Munawar, Rasib, Shah (Vice-Chair) and Sohal 

  

Apologies for Absence:- Councillor Coad 
 

 
PART 1 

 
1. Declarations of Interest  

 
Councillor Munawar declared that he held a private license for the sale of 
alcohol. 
 

2. Guidance on Predetermination/ Predisposition - To Note  
 
Members confirmed that they had read and understood the guidance on 
Predetermination and Predisposition. 
 

3. Minutes of the Last Meeting held on 16th January, 2014  
 
Resolved – That the minutes of the meeting held on 16th January 2014 be 

approved as a correct record. 
 

4. Appointment of Licensing Sub-Committee and Designated Chairs  
 
The Senior Democratic Services Officer, introduced the report, and 
nominations were sought for the appointment of Designated Chairs to the 
Sub-Committee for the 2014/2015 municipal year. 
 
Members discussed the membership/convening arrangements for the Sub 
Committee. It was decided that the rotation of the Conservative membership 
was no longer required, as two Conservative Members were appointed to the 
Licensing Committee. It was felt that membership was therefore sufficient to 
convene meetings on a 2:1 proportionate basis for the anticipated number of 
meetings required. 
 
Resolved - 
 

(a) That a Licensing Sub-Committee drawn from the Members of the 
Licensing Committee be established as required on a proportional 
basis (2 Labour 1 Conservative wherever possible) with terms of 
reference as set out in the appendix to the report. 

 
(b) That Councillors Ajaib, Davis and Malik be appointed as designated 

Chairs of the Sub-Committee for the 2014/2015 Municipal year.   
 

Page 3

AGENDA ITEM 3



 

Licensing Committee - 26.06.14 

(c) That the Committee declined to adopt the arrangement confirmed 
in the previous year whereby the Conservative seat allocation 
would rotate with the non group member. 

 
5. Members Attendance Record 2014/15  

 
Resolved – That the Members Attendance Record 2014/15 be noted. 
 

6. Date of Next Meeting - 23rd July 2014  
 
Resolved –  That the date of the next meeting of the Licensing Committee be 

confirmed as Wednesday 23rd July 2014. 
 
 

Chair 
 

(Note: The Meeting opened at 6.30 pm and closed at 6.42 pm) 
 

Page 4



  

 

 
                                                                                                              

SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
REPORT TO:   Licensing Committee           DATE: 23rd July 2014 
     
CONTACT OFFICER:    Rachael Rumney – Senior Licensing Officer 
(For all Enquiries)   (01753 477338) 
                                           Michael Sims - Licensing Manager 
                                           (01753 477387) 
     
WARD(S):   ALL 
 

PART I 
 

FOR INFORMATION 
 

LAW COMMISSION REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATIONS FOR TAXI AND PRIVATE 
HIRE SERVICES 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 

           To advise Members on the legislative reforms proposed by the Law Commission 
for Taxi and Private Hire Services.   

 
2. Recommendation(s)/Proposed Action 

 

           The Committee is requested to note the recommendations made by the Law 
Commission.   

 
3. Community Strategy Priorities–  

 

• Being Safe, Feeling Safe 

• A Cleaner, Greener place to Live, Work and Play 

• Prosperity for All 
 
4.  Other Implications 

 
(a) Financial  

 
There are no financial implications at this time. 
 

(b) Risk Management  
 

 

Recommendation Risk/Threat/Opportunity Mitigation(s) 

None – Information 
only  

None – Information only None – Information only 

 

 
        (c) Human Rights Act and Other Legal Implications  
 
             Section 1 and Schedule 1 of The Human Rights Act 1998 apply: 

Page 5

AGENDA ITEM 4



  

 
Article 1 of the First Protocol– Every person is entitled to a peaceful enjoyment 
of his or her possessions including the possession of a licence and shall not be 
deprived of the possession except in the public interest. 

 
             Article 6 – That in the determination of civil rights and obligations everyone is 
             entitled to a fair and public hearing within a reasonable time by an independent 
             and impartial tribunal established by law. 

 
(d) Equalities Impact Assessment   
 

A full impact assessment has been conducted by the Law Commission as part 
of the review process which indicates that there will be a negative impact on 
business and competition areas but not necessarily on equality groups.  

 
(e) There are no workforce implications at this time. 
 

5. Supporting Information 
 
5.1.  On 23rd May 2014, the Law Commission published its final report and draft Bill on 

the reform of the law governing Taxi and Private Hire Services.   The full report 
consists of 290 pages detailing 82 recommendations with 77 clauses contained 
within the Bill, the key elements of which are the following: 

• The two-tier system, which distinguishes between taxis (which can be 
hailed in the street or from ranks) and private hire (which must be pre-
booked), is to be maintained.  

• The creation of new offences to distinguish more clearly between taxis and 
private hire vehicles, in order partly to deal with the advent of mobile 
phone apps which have blurred this distinction. The imprecise concept of 
“plying for hire” is abandoned and a prohibition of carrying passengers for 
hire without a licence, alongside a new offence making it unlawful for 
anyone other than a local taxi driver to accept a journey starting “there and 
then” is introduced.  

• The introduction of a statutory definition of pre-booking in order to create a 
clear distinction between a taxi in its licensing area and a private hire 
vehicle. For private hire vehicles, advance price information must be 
available on request, whereas taxis can be hailed for a journey beginning 
there or then with no need for arrangements in advance.  

• Private hire operators will no longer be limited to using drivers and 
vehicles from their own licensing area, nor will they be limited to bookings 
within that area.  

• National standards will be introduced to ensure uniformity of regulation 
and address the disparities which currently exist between licensing 
authorities. The national standards will continue to be administered by 
local authorities, which can also decide to impose additional conditions, 
subject to proper consultation. Fares will also be left to local authorities to 
decide.  

• Councils will still be able to limit the number of taxi licences they issue 
subject to a new test of “public interest” in place of the old “unmet 
demand”.  

Page 6



  

• Increased powers will be given to licensing officers to improve 
enforcement, including a power to stop a licensed vehicle on the road 
without a police officer present.  

• The procedure for hearings and appeals will be standardised across 
England and Wales 

 
5.2. The Law Commission has published a full summary of the proposals and 

recommendations which is attached at Appendix A of the report.    
 
5.3. It is anticipated that the draft Bill will take approximately 18 months to 2 years 

to go pass through Parliament before receiving Royal assent and it will 
undoubtedly have a major impact on all policies and procedures and aspects 
Private Hire and Hackney Carriage licensing within local authorities and the 
trade.   

 
5.4. Once it is known when the Bill is to be enacted, a report will be put before the 

Licensing Committee detailing the final legislative changes and national 
requirements.  The Committee will be asked to recommend a full review of all 
policies and procedures (subject where necessary to a full consultation with 
all relevant stakeholders).   

 
6.      Comments of Other Committees 
 
         None. 
 

7. Conclusion 
 

The Licensing Committee are asked to note the recommendations made by the 
Law Commission and that further updated reports will be put before the Committee 
during the progress of the Bill through Parliament. 
 

8. Appendices Attached  
 

‘A’    -     Law Commission Recommendations. 
 

9. Background Paper 
 
 None.  

 
 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Commission
Law

Reforming the law

May 2014

Taxi and private hire services

Page 9



 1

TAXI AND PRIVATE HIRE SERVICES 

SUMMARY 

INTRODUCTION 

1.1 The Law Commission for England and Wales is an independent, non-

governmental body which reviews the law and recommends reform. Our report 

Taxi and Private Hire Services presents our recommendations for wholesale 

reform of the law. Our remit did not extend to making recommendations about the 

regulation of public service vehicles, or bus services, except to the extent that 

there is an overlap with taxi and private hire services. The report is accompanied 

by a draft Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles Bill, which would give effect to those of 

our recommendations which would require legislative change, and an impact 

assessment containing the costs and benefits of our proposals.1 

BACKGROUND TO THE REPORT 

1.2 The current law on taxis and private hire vehicles has evolved piecemeal since 

taxis in London were first regulated in 1630, primarily as a means of reducing 

congestion. The regulation of private hire vehicles developed in the latter part of 

the twentieth century in response to the growing demand for pre-booked services 

and concerns about the potential dangers associated with unregulated providers. 

1.3 The law is to be found in numerous pieces of legislation, with different laws 

applying in London, Plymouth, and the rest of England and Wales. Detailed 

requirements are determined by individual local licensing authorities, and there is 

a lack of consistency in the standards applied.  This is potentially harmful to 

public safety, and has a restrictive effect on business. There are overlaps with the 

regulation of some public service vehicles, in particular those with fewer than nine 

passenger seats, and there is confusion as to the proper licensing regime for 

vehicles such as stretch limousines and other novelty vehicles which do not 

necessarily sit comfortably in any regime. The current law also includes some 

restrictions which we think impose unnecessary burdens on business, and which 

we recommend for removal. 

1.4 The report considers the current law in detail and makes recommendations which 

would result in the repeal of much of the existing legislation and its replacement 

with a single legislative framework to regulate both taxi and private hire services. 
 

1 The full report, draft Bill and impact assessment are available on our website: 
http://lawcommission.justice.gov.uk/areas/taxi-and-private-hire-services.htm. 

Page 10



 2

This would consist of a new Act of Parliament, underpinned by secondary 

legislation and guidance. The new regime would see the introduction of national 

standards for all taxis and private hire vehicles, set by the Secretary of State, with 

the power for local licensing authorities to set additional standards for taxi 

services only. Local authorities would, however, remain responsible for issuing 

licences and enforcement in relation to both taxis and private hire vehicles. 

1.5 The terms of reference for this project required us to consider the potential 

advantages of deregulation. We took this into account in the formulation of our 

recommendations, scrutinising each aspect of the regulatory system to determine 

whether the level of regulation it imposed could be justified. This approach 

underpins the recommendations made in the Report. In particular we have 

considered how a lighter-touch and more flexible regulatory regime for private 

hire services may benefit an industry which is more susceptible to the standard-

raising effect of competitive forces than the taxi trade. 

1.6 In formulating the appropriate level of regulation we concluded that regulatory 

intervention could only be justified if it promoted one or more of four defined 

purposes; namely public safety, accessibility, enforcement of the legislation and 

environmental protection. Our recommendations mean that standards relating to 

more peripheral issues, such as vehicle types and colours, could only be 

imposed locally in respect of taxi services.  

1.7 The recommendations in this Report have been formulated following a wide-

ranging consultation with representatives of the taxi and private hire services 

industries and the regulators, including local licensing authorities, the Traffic 

Commissioners and the Driver and Vehicle Standards Agency (formally the 

Vehicle and Operator Services Agency). We also consulted groups representing 

disabled persons, trades unions, and the police, and welcomed input from 

specialist consultants. We published a detailed consultation paper in May 2012 to 

support a consultation during which we received more than 3,000 written 

responses and attended more than 85 consultation meetings with stakeholders 

across England and Wales. We have also examined the regulatory structures in 

different parts of the world, for example, New York, Queensland, Australia, 

Ireland and parts of the European Union. 

THE TWO-TIER SYSTEM 

1.8 The current regulatory regime differentiates between taxis, which can be hailed in 

the street or hired at ranks, and private hire services which must be pre-booked. 

Page 11



 3

We considered whether the continuation of this two-tier system was beneficial, or 

whether it should be replaced by an alternative regime which would permit any 

licensed vehicle to be used by a licensed driver to pick up passengers in 

response to hails or at ranks. Although strong arguments were put forward in 

support of a new “one-tier” system, we recommend that the present two-tier 

system should be retained, albeit with important changes to the way in which the 

distinction between the two types of service is drawn. It is our view that the two-

tier structure promotes consumer choice and the provision of a wide range of 

services. Furthermore, the different ways in which taxis and private hire vehicles 

are engaged make different levels of regulation appropriate, so that a single 

system would lead to over or under-regulation. 

DEFINING TAXI AND PRIVATE HIRE SERVICES 

1.9 Although we recommend retaining the two-tier system, we also propose 

significant changes to the way in which the legal distinction between the tiers 

should be drawn. The current system relies heavily on the imprecise concept of 

“plying for hire”, which performs the very important function of defining what taxis 

alone are allowed to do in undertaking rank and hail work. However, the meaning 

of the concept is not set out in statute and has become the subject of a body of 

case-law that is not wholly consistent. The advent of new technology such as 

mobile phone applications which enable the customer to hire a vehicle almost 

instantaneously has helped to blur the distinction between the two types of 

service. 

1.10 The core recommendation which forms the basis of the new framework we 

propose in this area is the creation of an offence of using a vehicle on a road to 

carry passengers, where both the vehicle and the driver have been hired for that 

purpose, without the appropriate licences. A further offence would differentiate 

between the different types of service by prohibiting anyone other than a licensed 

taxi driver, in a licensed taxi, from agreeing to use a vehicle for hire for a journey 

that starts “there and then”. This means that the holders of private hire licences 

would be prohibited from accepting a “there and then” hiring.  Instead all journeys 

would have to be pre-booked through a licensed dispatcher,2 and we recommend 

that statute should define this term. 

1.11 Our draft Bill makes a lawful private hire booking one for which records meeting 

prescribed requirements are kept, and where advance price information is 
 

2 The term our draft Bill uses in place of the current “operator”. 

Page 12



 4

available on request. By contrast, customers would continue to be able to 

approach or hail a taxi for a journey beginning there and then with no need for 

any arrangements in advance.  

1.12 Under current law the operator is defined as the person who, in the course of  

business, makes provision for the “invitation or acceptance” of bookings for 

private hire vehicles. We think this definition is unnecessarily broad, and brings 

within its remit intermediaries who may arrange a booking through another 

intermediary and have no responsibility for selecting the car or driver. We 

recommend that operator licensing should only cover the functions of dispatching 

the vehicle and driver to fulfil a pre-booking, and not the functions of inviting and 

accepting bookings, which in themselves would no longer require a licence. As a 

result, we recommend that such licensees should be known as dispatchers and 

should be responsible for ensuring that the booking is fulfilled by a licensed driver 

using a licensed vehicle, that the appropriate information has been provided to 

the passenger, and that the required records are made and retained. It would be 

a criminal offence to carry out the functions of a dispatcher without holding an 

appropriate licence. 

CROSS-BORDER WORKING 

1.13 We recommend freeing up cross-border working for private hire services. 

Operators should no longer be limited to using drivers and vehicles from their 

own licensing area; nor should they be restricted to only inviting or accepting 

bookings within that licensing area. Under our recommended regulatory 

framework, licensing district boundaries lose much of their importance in relation 

to private hire vehicles. National standards for private hire, set by the Secretary of 

State following consultation, will ensure uniform standards across England and 

Wales. This will allow consumers to expect, as a minimum, the same level of 

safety and quality wherever they are, and will remove the incentive for applicants 

(both taxi and private hire) to seek licences in an area with less exacting 

standards.  

1.14 Although local authorities will continue to administer licences applied for in their 

area, they will do so on the basis of national standards, which they will have no 

discretion to vary for private hire vehicles and drivers. Once licensed, providers 

will be able to work across England and Wales and be subject to enforcement 

action by officers of any licensing authority.  

1.15 We do not propose any changes to the geographical aspects of the way taxis 

Page 13



 5

work: they will still only be allowed to stand at ranks and accept hails within the 

area in which they are licensed and they will continue to be allowed to undertake 

a pre-booked journey starting within or outside that area.  

1.16 We have heard complaints of problems with taxis seeking licences in an area 

known for lower standards or lower licensing fees with a view to undertaking pre-

booked work elsewhere, sometimes in areas whose standards the vehicle or 

driver does not meet. Whilst this is within the law, it undermines aspects of the 

regulatory system. Our recommendations will remove the incentive to engage in 

this practice as the same or similar minimum standards will apply to both the taxi 

and private hire sectors; we expect these to govern the most important aspects of 

driver and vehicle standards. In respect of those standards, taxis will be subject 

to the enforcement jurisdiction of enforcement officers anywhere. 

DEFINITIONS AND SCOPE 

1.17 Under current law, different legislation applies to London, Plymouth and the 

remainder of England and Wales. We recommend that the new legislation should 

apply throughout England and Wales, including London. There has been general 

support for this, subject to the proviso that the framework is sufficiently flexible to 

account for the significantly different features of London.  

1.18 The terminology used in current taxi legislation is outdated and archaic 

references to stage coaches and stage carriages have led to confusion as to 

whether pedicabs can be regulated as taxis. Private hire legislation covers 

vehicles provided for hire with the services of a driver for the purpose of carrying 

passengers, but there is uncertainty as to whether the provision of transport as 

part of a wider service, such as childminding, falls within the scope of private hire 

vehicle licensing.   

1.19 Uncertainty over the borderline between private hire regulation and the regulation 

of public service vehicles (which generally covers larger vehicles such as buses 

and minibuses), has also led to difficulties over the regulation of limousines and 

novelty vehicles. The issues relate both to which regime these vehicles should 

currently be regulated under, as this is not always clear and has led to some 

services escaping regulation altogether, and which regime would be more 

appropriate under a reformed system. We propose a clear boundary between the 

two regimes. 

1.20 As a deregulatory measure, we also recommend a change in the law to enable 

the providers of taxi and private hire services to use vehicles with the capacity to 

Page 14



 6

carry up to 16 passengers in particular circumstances under their existing licence. 

This would provide more flexibility for operators to use larger vehicles where it 

suits their business model without the additional burden of having to obtain a 

separate public service vehicle operator licence. 

1.21 We recommend that taxi and private hire regulation should cover the use of a 

vehicle to carry one or more passengers, where the vehicle and driver have been 

hired for that purpose. The draft Bill provides an exception for transport provided 

as part of a wider service, such as that provided in hotel courtesy cars or by 

carers, and of transport provided in connection with weddings and funerals, which 

is already exempted from regulation. Significantly, we propose bringing stretch 

limousines and other novelty vehicles clearly within private hire regulation. The 

same is true of pedicabs, which are already regulated as taxis outside London, 

but will fall within taxi licensing in London for the first time, pursuant to our 

reforms. 

1.22 We also make recommendations to clarify what vehicles and services should be 

subject to licensing obligations. The reference to “hire” in our Bill limits the 

regulation to commercial activities, thus excluding informal car sharing 

arrangements where any financial contribution is limited to a share of expenses. 

We also recommend that the Secretary of State should have the power to exempt 

particular vehicles or services from licensing.  

COMMON NATIONAL STANDARDS FOR VEHICLES, DRIVERS AND 
DISPATCHERS 

1.23 Currently, standards for taxis, private hire vehicles, drivers and private hire 

operators are set by local authorities, which are responsible for the administration 

of the licensing system. This leads to substantial regional variation, even in such 

critical areas as the treatment of past criminal convictions and medical conditions. 

It can have a very restrictive effect on business, by making it difficult to be 

licensed in more than one area as a means of expanding one’s business.  

1.24 A key innovation in our recommended framework is the introduction of national 

standards for taxi and private hire vehicle licensing. These standards would relate 

to drivers, vehicles and dispatchers (as our draft Bill calls operators). The content 

of national standards would be determined by the Secretary of State further to a 

statutory consultation with specified stakeholders including the trades, regulators 

and disability groups. We are recommending that national standards should be 

limited to defined purposes, namely public safety, accessibility, matters relevant 

Page 15



 7

to the enforcement of the legislation and environmental protection. In respect of 

private hire services, national standards should entirely replace locally-set 

conditions. In respect of taxi services, by contrast, we recommend that national 

standards should be capable of being supplemented at local level.  

CRIMINAL OFFENCES SPECIFIC TO THE TRADES 

1.25 We propose the abolition of a number of out of date offences; in place of them we 

propose a more streamlined set of offences contained in our draft Bill together 

with reliance on the general criminal law or on licence conditions. We propose 

that the Secretary of State have the power to designate the most important 

nationally set standards so that breach of them will be a criminal offence.  

LOCAL TAXI STANDARDS AND TAXI FARE REGULATION 

1.26 The continuing ability of licensing authorities to set additional conditions would be 

subject to procedural requirements relating to consultation and publication. Our 

recommendations also retain the current system of leaving fares to the discretion 

of the local authority. Drivers would continue to be able to charge more than the 

metered fare where a journey begins inside the licensing area but ends beyond 

the compellable distance, provided the fare is agreed and recorded in advance. 

However, we recommend that licensing authorities should not have power to 

regulate third party booking fees which are agreed in advance, as these 

represent a genuinely competitive aspect of taxis working in the pre-booked 

market.  

ADMINISTRATION OF THE LICENSING SYSTEM 

1.27 Administration of the licensing regime and enforcement should continue to be 

carried out at local level by licensing authorities. Taxi licence fees should 

continue to be set on a cost recovery basis, with a uniform licence fee for private 

hire services to discourage applicants (who would now be subject to the same 

requirements across England and Wales) applying to an authority for purely 

financial reasons. We recommend procedural steps to improve co-operation 

between licensing authorities, to assist with administration and enforcement. We 

also recommend a more flexible power to create, remove and modify taxi zones, 

which would be subject to a public interest test. 

QUANTITY RESTRICTIONS 

1.28 We recommend allowing licensing authorities to continue to limit taxi numbers. 

We do not regard the current statutory criterion of “unmet demand” as 

appropriate and instead suggest a test based on the public interest, combined 

Page 16



 8

with procedural requirements such as a review every three years and a duty to 

consult.  

1.29 Whilst we accept that quantity controls can be a positive regulatory tool for 

licensing authorities, when exercised in accordance with the public interest and 

appropriate safeguards, they have the undesirable side-effect of creating inflated 

plate values (effectively transfer fees for vehicle licenses) which act as a barrier 

to entry. We recommend that there should be no changes to the transferability of 

licence plates in areas that currently have quantity restrictions, so that licence 

holders who may have invested a considerable amount of money to purchase the 

licence, or otherwise reasonably expected their plate to have accrued substantial 

value, would not be negatively impacted by our reforms. On the other hand, taxi 

licences in areas which first introduce quantity restrictions only after our reforms 

come into force should not be tradeable. This would prevent new plate values 

from arising in areas which introduce quantity restrictions only after 

implementation of our reforms. 

EQUALITY AND ACCESSIBILITY 

1.30 Although the general provisions of the Equality Act 2010 applicable to service 

providers apply to taxi and private hire services, it is clear that disabled 

passengers continue to suffer difficulties in obtaining and using these services. 

Furthermore, variable standards in relation to driver training and vehicle 

specifications mean that passengers may have very different experiences from 

one area to another.  

1.31 We recommend that taxi and private hire drivers, both new and existing, should 

be required to undergo disability awareness training as a pre-condition of the 

grant or renewal of a licence. Our proposals give licensing authorities the power 

to introduce a new duty to stop when hailed, associated with compellability to 

help address the problem of drivers ignoring disabled passengers. Our 

recommendations to make complaints procedures more accessible can also be 

particularly valuable to empower disabled users. 

ENFORCEMENT 

1.32 Under our recommendations, enforcement would remain the responsibility of 

licensing authorities. However, under current law, licensing officers are only able 

to take action against their own licensees. Furthermore, many licensing 

enforcement officers told us that their powers were not sufficient to tackle the 

breaches of conditions and licensing law they encountered.  

Page 17



 9

1.33 Many of the problems with enforcement derive from the lack of adequate 

resources and a perceived lack of interest in enforcing existing rules. These are 

not issues that legal reform is apt to address. On the other hand, we make a 

range of recommendations to enhance licensing officers’ powers, including 

granting them powers to stop a licensed vehicle on a road, without the need for a 

police officer to be present; to impound vehicles for touting; and to issue a fixed 

penalty notice to a person whom they have reason to believe has breached any 

provision in national standards.  

1.34 We also recommend that such powers should apply in respect of out-of-area 

vehicles. Our proposed reforms will make it possible for licence conditions 

prescribed as part of national standards (which will form the entirety of private 

hire licence conditions as well as the core of taxi conditions) to be enforced by 

any licensing officer against any licensee, across England and Wales.  

HEARINGS AND APPEALS 

1.35 The current law is characterised by inconsistency and complexity. We propose a 

simplified, uniform system. We recommend that the procedure for statutory 

appeals should be standardised across England and Wales (including London) 

for all forms of licence and irrespective of whether the decision challenged is a 

refusal of an application for a licence, a suspension or a revocation. In line with 

the current London model, applicants should be able to require the licensing 

authority to reconsider its original decision, the second stage in the statutory 

appeal process being an appeal to the magistrates’ court, with a further right of 

appeal to the Crown Court. Further, we recommend that local taxi conditions 

should be amenable to a streamlined judicial review procedure in the County 

Court. 

 

23 May 2014 

Page 18



 10

LIST OF RECOMMENDATIONS  

CHAPTER 2 – RETAINING THE TWO TIER SYSTEM 

Recommendation 1 

We recommend retaining the two-tier system. Regulation should continue to 
distinguish between taxis, which can be hailed or use ranks, and private hire 
vehicles, which can only be pre-booked. (Page 16) 

CHAPTER 3 – REFORM OF DEFINITIONS AND SCOPE 

Recommendation 2 

We recommend that the offences relating to plying for hire should be abolished. 
We propose replacing the concept of plying for hire with a new scheme of 
offences, resting on the principal prohibition of carrying passengers for hire 
without a licence, alongside a new offence making it unlawful for anyone other 
than a local taxi driver to accept a journey starting “there and then”.  (Page 22) 

Recommendation 3 

We recommend a statutory definition of pre-booking in order to create a clear 
distinction between the work of a taxi in its licensing area and the work of a 
private hire vehicle. (Page 22) 

Recommendation 4 

We recommend that the term “hackney carriage” should be replaced in    
legislation with the word “taxi”. The term “private hire vehicle” should remain 
unchanged. (Page 24) 

Recommendation 5 

We recommend that only the providers of licensed taxi services should be 
allowed to describe themselves using the term “taxi” on vehicles or in advertising 
materials. (Page 24) 

Recommendation 6 

Operators across England and Wales (dispatchers under our Bill) should be 
under a duty to provide a price or an an estimate of the fare on request, as is 
already the case in London. (Page 26) 

Recommendation 7 

We recommend that taxis picking up passengers outside their licensing area 
should be subject to a pre-booking requirement, which would be statutorily 
defined for the first time. This would require provision of an estimate of the price 
for the journey in advance, if requested, and record-keeping obligations. These 
requirements could be further refined through national standards as set by the 
Secretary of State. (Page 32) 

Recommendation 8 

We do not recommend the introduction of record-keeping requirements in respect 

Page 19



 11

of taxis except where they are picking up passengers outside their licensing area. 
(Page 32) 

Recommendation 9 

We recommend that local authority stopping officers should have a new 
enforcement power to require licensed vehicles to move on where the officer 
considers that:  

(1) there is a reasonable likelihood that the public may believe the vehicle is 
available for immediate hire; 

(2) the vehicle is causing an obstruction to traffic flow; or 

(3) the driver is attempting to take work away from ranked taxis. (Page 33) 

Recommendation 10 

We recommend introducing a new offence which makes it unlawful for anyone 
other than a locally licensed taxi driver to accept a booking for a journey starting 
there and then. (Page 34) 

Recommendation 11 

We recommend that compellability should be retained in its current form. It 
should be open to licensing authorities to express compellability as a time or 
distance from the point of hire, or as extending to the boundaries of a licensing 
zone. Licensing authorities should also be able to extend the compellable 
distance up to seven miles beyond the boundary of the licensing area, or twenty 
miles in the case of Transport for London. (Page 37) 

Recommendation 12 

Licensing authorities should have the power to make a determination that in their 
areas, taxis should be under a duty to stop when hailed.  In such areas, it would 
be an offence for a taxi driver in a vehicle displaying a “for hire” sign to fail to stop 
in response to a hail, without reasonable excuse. (Page 38) 

Recommendation 13 

Licensing authorities should be under a duty to consult on the need to alter rank 
provision; and to consider whether new ranks should be appointed, or current 
ones moved or removed, on a periodic basis not exceeding every three years. 
(Page 39) 

Recommendation 14 

We recommend that those acting in the course of a business who pass taxi or 
private hire bookings to providers who they know or suspect to be unlicensed 
should be guilty of an offence. (Page 41) 

Recommendation 15 

We do not propose to require intermediaries working solely with licensed taxis 
(which we refer to as “radio circuits”) to be licensed. (Page 44) 

Page 20



 12

Recommendation 16 

We recommend that licensed operators (in future to be referred to in legislation 
as “dispatchers”) should be retained as a necessary element of the regulation of 
private hire services. (Page 46) 

Recommendation 17 

We recommend that operator licensing should only cover dispatch functions, and 
no longer apply to the invitation or acceptance of bookings as such. However, if it 
is shown that an individual or company accepted a hire vehicle booking, a 
presumption should arise that that person also “dispatched” the driver. This 
ensures the continued accountability of those who, in the course of business, 
accept hire vehicle bookings from the public. (Page 48) 

Recommendation 18 

It should also be an offence, in the course of business, to dispatch an unlicensed 
vehicle or driver. It would also be an offence for a person to dispatch a private 
hire vehicle and driver unless that person holds a dispatcher’s licence. It would 
be a defence if the driver and vehicle were reasonably believed to hold 
appropriate taxi licences. (Page 48) 

Recommendation 19 

Persons accepting a hire vehicle booking in the course of business should be 
under a duty to provide information to the hirer in respect of any person on to 
whom they passed the booking. (Page 48) 

CHAPTER 4 – DEFINITIONS AND SCOPE 

Recommendation 20 

We recommend that our proposed reforms should extend to all of England and 
Wales, including London and Plymouth. (Page 55) 

Recommendation 21 

Taxi and private hire licensing should cover vehicles regardless of their form or 
construction, including non-motorised vehicles. (Page 57) 

Recommendation 22 

We recommend that taxi and private hire licensing requirements should only 
cover services provided for commercial gain. (Page 63) 

Recommendation 23 

We recommend that taxi and private hire licensing should not cover the carriage 
of a passenger as an ancillary or incidental part of another service. (Page 63) 

Recommendation 24 

We recommend that, for the purposes of taxi, private hire and public service 
vehicle legislation, all passenger seats and spaces capable of carrying a standing 
passenger should be included when assessing vehicle carrying capacity. (Page 
66) 

Page 21



 13

Recommendation 25 

We recommend that consideration be given to revising the criteria for licensing a 
vehicle as a “small public service vehicle” , making them more clearly centred on 
local bus services. (Page 67) 

Recommendation 26 

We recommend extending the reach of taxi and private hire licensing to larger 
vehicles in two circumstances: 

(a) on a mandatory basis, in respect of stretch limousines and 
novelty vehicles; and 

(b) on an optional basis, where providers want to use larger vehicles 
in a taxi or private hire business. (Page 70) 

Recommendation 27 

We recommend that the Secretary of State should have the power to exempt 
certain categories of vehicle or services used to carry passengers for hire from 
the requirement to hold a taxi or private hire licence. Licensing authorities would, 
however, retain the power to impose licensing requirements on vehicles used as 
taxis within their local licensing area. (Page 71) 

Recommendation 28 

We recommend that wedding and funeral cars should continue to be exempt from 
taxi and private hire licensing while the vehicle is being used in connection with a 
wedding or a funeral. (Page 74) 

Recommendation 29 

Non-professional use of licensed taxi and private hire vehicles, including by non-
professional drivers, should be permitted, subject to a rebuttable presumption 
that such vehicles are being used professionally when they are carrying 
passengers. (Page 77) 

CHAPTER 5 – COMMON NATIONAL STANDARDS FOR TAXI AND PRIVATE 
HIRE 

Recommendation 30 

We recommend the introduction of national standards for taxi and private hire 
services. (Page 80) 

Recommendation 31 

National standards should promote enforcement, protection of the environment 
and accessibility, in addition to safety. (Page 82) 

Page 22



 14

Recommendation 32 

National standards for taxi services should be comparable but not necessarily 
identical to national standards for private hire services. (Page 82) 

Recommendation 33 

We recommend that driver and vehicle standards should be set in secondary 
legislation by the Secretary of State. (Page 84) 

Recommendation 34 

The standard setting power of the Secretary of State should be subject to a 
statutory consultation requirement. (Page 91) 

Recommendation 35 

We recommend that the ability to apply for a vehicle licence should no longer be 
restricted to vehicle owners. (Page 93) 

Recommendation 36 

Applicants for vehicle licences should not be subject to a fit and proper person 
test. (Page 95) 

Recommendation 37 

We recommend that licensing authorities should not have a general power to 
impose individual conditions on the holders of taxi or private hire licences. (Page 
98) 

CHAPTER 6 – CRIMINAL OFFENCES SPECIFIC TO THE TAXI AND PRIVATE 
HIRE TRADES 

Recommendation 38 

We recommend that the Secretary of State should exercise the standard setting 
power to provide that a conviction for specified offences is a breach of a licensing 
condition, or incompatible with eligibility to hold a licence. (Page 101) 

Recommendation 39 

The Secretary of State should have the power to designate specific licence 
conditions, breach of which will amount to a criminal offence. (Page 102) 

CHAPTER 7 – NATIONAL STANDARDS FOR PRIVATE HIRE 

Recommendation 40 

Private hire services should only be subject to national standards. Licensing 
authorities should no longer have the power to impose local conditions. (Page 
104) 

Recommendation 41 

We recommend that dispatchers should continue to be subject to fit and proper 
person requirements as part of national standards. (Page 105) 

Page 23



 15

Recommendation 42 

We recommend that dispatchers should be subject to a statutory duty to maintain 
records in such form as may be prescribed by the Secretary of State. (Page 107) 

Recommendation 43 

Signage requirements for private hire vehicles should form part of the national 
standards determined by the Secretary of State. The Secretary of State should 
impose requirements that aim to ensure that the public are able to distinguish 
easily between taxis and private hire vehicles. (Page 112) 

Recommendation 44 

We recommend that operator/dispatchers should no longer be restricted to 
working only with drivers and vehicles whose licences are issued by the same 
licensing authority as the dispatcher. (Page 115) 

Recommendation 45 

Dispatchers should have the ability to sub-contract bookings to any dispatcher in 
England and Wales. (Page 117) 

CHAPTER 8 – LOCAL TAXI STANDARDS 

Recommendation 46 

We recommend that licensing authorities should retain the power to set local taxi 
standards over and above national standards. (Page 120) 

Recommendation 47 

Licensing authorities should be required to consult on additional licensing 
conditions for taxi drivers and vehicles. (Page 121) 

CHAPTER 9 – TAXI FARE REGULATION 

Recommendation 48 

Licensing authorities should retain the ability to regulate taxi fares, in respect of 
any journey within the compellable distance. (Page 125) 

Recommendation 49 

A taxi driver should be allowed to charge more than the metered fare for journeys 
starting inside the licensing area and ending beyond the compellable distance 
only if this is agreed in advance. In the case of pre-booked journeys starting 
outside the compellable distance the price or an estimate should be given on 
request and, if so, recorded. (Page 125) 

Recommendation 50 

We recommend that licensing authorities should retain the power to regulate 
fares charged for pre-booked taxi journeys. However, there should be no power 
to regulate third party booking fees, provided these are agreed in advance. (Page 
130) 

Page 24



 16

CHAPTER 10 – ADMINISTRATION OF THE LICENSING SYSTEM 

Recommendation 51 

The principle of cost recovery should continue to apply in respect of taxi and 
private hire licensing fees. (Page 134) 

Recommendation 52 

Licensing authorities should be able to collect and use licensing fees from taxi 
and private hire licensing only for the following purposes:  

 (1) administration of the licensing system (including but not limited to  
  processing applications for granting or renewing licences and carrying 
  out inspections and tests); 

(2)  statutorily required reviews of fare levels, rank provision, accessibility 
  and existing quantity restrictions at least every three years; 

 (3)  enforcement of the licensing system including but not limited to the 
  control and supervision of taxi and private hire services (whether  
  licensed or unlicensed) and activities associated with suspending or 
  revoking licences; and 

 (4) providing taxi ranks. (Page 134) 

Recommendation 53 

We recommend that the Secretary of State should set a private hire licensing fee 
which could not be varied locally. Taxi licensing fees should continue to be set 
locally, but at a level no lower than the national private hire fee. (Page 135) 

Recommendation 54 

We recommend that the Secretary of State should have the power to set up a 
system of pooling private hire licence fees nationally, for the purposes of 
redistributing these to reflect enforcement needs, in accordance with such a 
scheme as may be prescribed. (Page 136) 

Recommendation 55 

Licensing authorities should have the power to combine their taxi and private hire 
licensing areas. (Page 138) 

Recommendation 56 

We recommend that licensing authorities should be under a duty to publish their 
driver, vehicle and operator licensing data in such form as the Secretary of State 
may require. (Page 140) 

Recommendation 57 

Licensing authorities should have a more flexible power to introduce and remove 
taxi licensing zones. This power would permit removal or introduction of zones 
within a licensing district. The power should be subject to consultation and a 
statutory public interest test. (Page 143) 

Page 25



 17

CHAPTER 11 – QUANTITY RESTRICTIONS 

Recommendation 58 

We recommend that licensing authorities should continue to have the power to 
limit the number of taxi vehicles licensed in their area. (Page 159) 

Recommendation 59 

The power of licensing authorities to impose quantity restrictions should be 
subject to a statutory public interest test. Further, the Secretary of State  should 
have regulation-making powers prescribing how the statutory test should be 
applied. (Page 162) 

Recommendation 60 

Decisions to restrict taxi numbers should be reviewed at least every three years 
and be subject to local consultation in accordance with such procedures as may 
be prescribed in regulations made by the Secretary of State. (Page 162) 

Recommendation 61 

In licensing areas where quantity restrictions already exist at the time of the 
introduction of our reforms, but not in other areas, vehicle licence holders should 
continue to be able to transfer their taxi licences at a premium. (Page 166) 

CHAPTER 12 – ACCESSIBILITY 

Recommendation 62 

We recommend that taxi and private hire drivers be required to undergo disability 
awareness training of a standard set by the Secretary of State. (Page 170) 

Recommendation 63 

We recommend that the Secretary of State require information on how to 
complain about taxi and private hire vehicle services to be displayed in taxi and 
private hire vehicles. (Page 171) 

Recommendation 64 

We recommend that local licensing authorities should display complaint 
information in offices, libraries and on websites. (Page 171) 

Recommendation 65 

We recommend that licensing authorities conduct an accessibility review at three 
year intervals. (Page 172) 

Recommendation 66 

We recommend that the Secretary of State require holders of taxi and private hire 
driver licences and dispatcher licences to comply with the Equality Act 2010 as a 
condition of the licence. (Page 175) 

Recommendation 67 

We recommend that licensing authorities should reconsider rank design to 
ensure compliance with the Equality Act 2010. (Page 177) 

Page 26



 18

Recommendation 68 

We recommend that licensing conditions should provide that information about 
the licensing authority and local operators should be provided in alternative 
formats, as well as information about the types of vehicle available in their area. 
(Page 177) 

Recommendation 69 

We recommend that the Secretary of State should have the power to impose 
accessibility requirements on large operator/dispatchers. In particular, the power 
should permit the setting of quotas of accessible vehicles which must be 
available to such dispatchers. (Page 179) 

CHAPTER 13 – ENFORCEMENT 

Recommendation 70 

We recommend that licensing officers who have been suitably trained and 
accredited should be given the power to stop licensed taxi and private hire 
vehicles in a public place for the purpose of checking compliance with licensing 
requirements. (Page 183) 

Recommendation 71 

The offence of touting should be retained. It should continue to be an offence of 
broad application which extends to all persons, whether licensed or unlicensed. 
(Page 187) 

Recommendation 72 

We recommend that there should be a new defence to touting, where the 
solicitation is in respect of a licensed taxi or private hire vehicle, if the soliciting 
occurs in a place which has been designated by that licensing authority for that 
purpose, and that conditions as may be specified by the licensing authority have 
been complied with. (Page 187) 

Recommendation 73 

We recommend that the Sentencing Council consider amending the Magistrate’s 
Court Sentencing Guidelines in respect of taxi touting to take into account the 
vulnerability of the persons solicited as a relevant factor in sentencing. (Page 
189) 

Recommendation 74 

We recommend that licensing authorities should have the power to impound 
vehicles used in connection with touting. (Page 193) 

Recommendation 75 

Fixed penalties should be among the sanctions available in respect of minor 
criminal offences under taxi and private hire legislation. (Page 195) 

Recommendation 76 

We recommend extending the power to suspend licences immediately on 
grounds of public safety to all licence types, in line with the current position in 

Page 27



 19

London. (Page 196) 

Recommendation 77 

Licensing officers should be able to take non-criminal enforcement action against 
vehicles, drivers and operators, licensed outside their licensing area. (Page 198) 

Recommendation 78 

We recommend that powers to revoke a licence should be available only to the 
licensing authority which issued that licence. However, enforcement officers in 
another area should have the power to: 

 (a)  suspend a licence when they consider this to be  
  necessary in  the interests of public safety; and 

 (b)  make recommendations to the home licensing authority 
  as to appropriate sanctions, to which the home authority 
  must have regard. (Page 200) 

CHAPTER 14 – HEARINGS AND APPEALS 

Recommendation 79 

The right to appeal against refusals to grant or renew taxi and private hire 
licences or to suspend or revoke them should be limited to the applicant or 
licence holder. (Page 202) 

Recommendation 80 

We recommend that the first stage in the appeal process in respect of refusals, 
suspensions or revocations of licences should be the right to require licensing 
authorities to reconsider the original decision. Appellants should have the right to 
bypass this stage and proceed direct to the magistrates’ court. (Page 206) 

Recommendation 81 

We recommend that all taxi and private hire licensing appeals should be heard in 
the magistrates’ court. (Page 209) 

Recommendation 82 

We recommend the retention of an onward right of appeal to the Crown 
Court. (Page 210) 

Recommendation 83 

We recommend that applicants for a vehicle licence for an opt-in vehicle should 
have a right of appeal to the Upper Tribunal if their application is refused on the 
basis of an objection by the Senior Traffic Commissioner.  (Page 210) 

Recommendation 84 

We recommend that a County Court judicial review procedure along the lines 
provided under the Housing Act 1996 should be available to challenge taxi 
conditions set by licensing authorities. (Page 212) 

 

Page 28



NT / 016107 / 253432 Page 1 

 

 

 
                                                                                                              

SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
REPORT TO:   Licensing Committee           DATE: 23rd July 2014 
     
CONTACT OFFICER:    Rachael Rumney - Senior Licensing Officer  
(For all Enquiries)   (01753 477338) 
                                           Michael Sims - Licensing Manager 
                                           (01753 4779387) 
     
WARD(S):   ALL 
 

PART I 
 

FOR INFORMATION 
 

REVISION OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE GUIDANCE-  SECTION 182 GUIDANCE 
(JUNE 2014) 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
           To advise members on the revision to the Secretary of State’s Guidance (Section 

182) for the Licensing Act 2003 published in June 2014.    
 
2. Recommendation(s)/Proposed Action 

 
           The Committee is requested to note that the Secretary of State’s Section 182 

Guidance for the Licensing Act 2003 has been revised and amended, including 
new guidance on the mandatory condition banning below cost sales of alcohol. 

 
3. Community Strategy Priorities–  

 

• Being Safe, Feeling Safe 

• A Cleaner, Greener place to Live, Work and Play 

• Prosperity for All 
 
4.  Other Implications 

 
(a) Financial  

 
There are no financial implications of the proposed action. 
 

(b) Risk Management  
 
 

Recommendation Risk/Threat/Opportunity Mitigation(s) 

None – information only None – information only None – information only 

 

Page 29

AGENDA ITEM 5



NT / 016107 / 253432 Page 2 

 

        (c) Human Rights Act and Other Legal Implications  
 
             Section 1 and Schedule 1 of The Human Rights Act 1998 apply: 
 

Article 1 of the First Protocol– Every person is entitled to a peaceful enjoyment of 
his or her possessions including the possession of a licence and shall not be 
deprived of the possession except in the public interest and subject to the 
conditions provided for by law. 

 
Article 6 – That in the determination of civil rights and obligations everyone is 
entitled to a fair and public hearing within a reasonable time by an independent 
and impartial tribunal established by law. 

 
(d) Equalities Impact Assessment   
 

The substantial majority of amendments to the Section 182 Guidance relate to 
the introduction of a new mandatory condition, attaching to premises licences 
and club premises certificates, banning the below cost selling of alcohol.  This 
condition was brought into force by The Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory 
Conditions) Order 2014.   The Home Office prepared an Impact Assessment in 
connection with this Order, which did not identify any equality issues.  No Impact 
Assessment was prepared by the Home Office in relation to the amended 
Section 182 Guidance.  
 
Neither the amendments relating to the new mandatory condition nor the other 
amendments to the Section 182 present any significant issues in relation to the 
Council’s duties under the Equalities Act 2010.  

 
         (e) There are no workforce implications from the publication of the revised 
              Guidance.  
 
5. Supporting Information 
 
5.1 The Licensing Act 2003 introduced a regime for the licensing of alcohol, regulated 

entertainment and late night refreshment, administered by a local Licensing 
Authority.  Under Section 182 of the Act, the Secretary of State issues guidance to 
accompany the primary legislation.   

 
5.2 In June 2014, the Secretary of State issued amended guidance, a copy of which will 

be provided to all the Members at the Committee meeting.  The Explanatory 
Memorandum of the amendments in the revised document is attached to the report 
at Appendix A.  This details the main amendments and additions to the revised 
Section 182 guidance.  

 
5.3    Although there are a number of minor amendments to the revised Guidance, the 

main revision to the Guidance relates to "The Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory 
Conditions) Order 2014 banning the sale of alcohol below the cost of VAT and duty” 
which took effect on 28 May 2014. This new Mandatory Condition applies to the 
sale of all alcohol at all licensed premises with authorisation i.e. Premises Licences 
and Club Premises Certificates, regardless as to whether the sale is On and or Off 
sales. 

 

Page 30



NT / 016107 / 253432 Page 3 

 

5.4 With regards to discharging its functions under the Licensing Act 2003, Point 4.2 of 
the Explanatory Memorandum states that - Licensing Authorities (which includes, 
the Members of the Licensing Committee, Licensing Sub Committees and Officers) 
must have regard to this Guidance but may depart from it if they have good reason 
to do so, although any such departure may give rise to an appeal or judicial review. 

  
5.5 There is an important footnote added to Paragraph 16.7 of the new guidance with 

regards to Early Morning Restriction Orders clarifying decision making and 
delegations which reads as follows: 

 
“The final decision to make an EMRO (or to vary or revoke one) must be made 
by the full council of the licensing authority. However, all preceding steps, 
including advertising the proposed EMRO, holding hearings and making a 
determination to put before the full council for its final decision, are for the 
licensing committee of the licensing authority. The licensing committee may 
delegate these steps to the licensing sub-committee or officers as it sees fit”. 

 
6.      Comments of Other Committees 
 
         None. 
 
7. Conclusion 
 

For Members to note the changes to the Secretary of State’s Section 182 Guidance.   
 

8. Appendices Attached  
 

‘A’    -     Explanatory memorandum 
 

9. Background Papers  
 

‘1’     -  Licensing Act 2003. 
 
‘2’    -   Secretary of State’s Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing 
             Act 2003 (Revised June 2014). 
 
‘3’    -   The Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Conditions) Order 2014 
 
‘4’    -    Home Office’s non-statutory “Guidance on banning the sale of alcohol 

below the cost of duty plus VAT For suppliers of alcohol and enforcement 
authorities in England and Wales” (May 2014) 

 
‘5’    -    Home Office Impact Assessment “Banning the Below Cost Selling Of 

Alcohol (BBCS)” 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

EXPLANATORY MEMORANDUM TO 
REVISED GUIDANCE ISSUED UNDER SECTION 182 OF THE LICENSING ACT 

2003 DATED JUNE 2014 
 
 
1. This explanatory memorandum has been prepared by the Home Office (“the 

Department”) and is laid before Parliament by Command of Her Majesty. 
 
 
2.  Purpose of the instrument 
 

2.1 The Secretary of State is revising the guidance issued under section 182 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 (“the 2003 Act”) primarily in consequence of the 
Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Conditions) Order 2014 (“the Order”). 

 
2.2 Most of the revisions to the guidance are made in Chapter 10 (Conditions 

attached to premises licences and club premises certificates) in consequence of 
the Order, but a limited number of revisions and corrections are also made 
elsewhere in the guidance to improve its clarity and consistency. 

 
 
3. Matters of special interest to the Joint Committee on Statutory Instruments  
 

3.1 None. 
 
 
4. Legislative context 
 

4.1 The 2003 Act provides a system of authorisation for the following activities 
(referred to as “licensable activities”): the sale by retail of alcohol; the supply 
of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a member of the club; 
the provision of regulated entertainment; and the provision of late night 
refreshment.  It is a criminal offence to carry on, or attempt to carry on, a 
licensable activity on or from premises without an appropriate authorisation 
under the 2003 Act.  Such an authorisation may comprise a premises licence, a 
club premises certificate or a temporary event notice. 

 
4.2 The 2003 Act provides a framework within which licensing authorities process 

and determine applications and exercise other licensing functions.  By section 
182 of the 2003 Act, the Secretary of State must issue guidance to licensing 
authorities on the discharge of their functions under the 2003 Act.  Licensing 
authorities must have regard to this guidance but may depart from it if they 
have good reason to do so, although any such departure may give rise to an 
appeal or judicial review.  The Secretary of State may also issue revised 
guidance from time to time.  The revised guidance to which this memorandum 
relates is being issued as a result of changes made under the 2003 Act by the 
Order. 

 
 
 

Page 33



2 
 

5. Territorial extent and application 
 
 5.1 This instrument applies to England and Wales.  
 
 
6. European Convention on Human Rights 
 

6.1 As the guidance is subject to negative resolution procedure and does not 
amend primary legislation, no statement is required. 

 
 
7. Policy background 
 

• What is being done and why 
 

7.1 Section 182 of the 2003 Act provides that the Secretary of State must issue 
and, from time to time, may revise guidance to licensing authorities on the 
discharge of their functions under the 2003 Act. 

 
7.2 The coming into force of the Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Conditions) 

Order 2014 requires a revision of the guidance to ensure that it is consistent 
with this new legislation. 

 
• Revisions to the guidance  

 
7.3  As a result of the legislative changes described above, the guidance has been 

revised to provide licensing authorities with advice in relation to their exercise of 
these new functions; see especially the revision of Chapter 10 in connection with 
the modifications made by the Order to the mandatory licensing conditions.  
Chapter 16 (Early Morning Alcohol Restriction Orders (EMROs)) has been 
revised to give greater clarity to licensing authorities on the process for 
introducing an EMRO.  Moreover, the guidance has been subject to a number of 
additional minor revisions to improve clarity in some areas.  

 
• Consolidation 

 
7.4 Not applicable. 

 
 
8.  Consultation outcome 
 

8.1 The revised statutory guidance issued under section 182 of the 2003 Act has 
not been the subject of a full public consultation because the revisions are 
necessary to reflect the changes made by the Order, which was the subject of 
earlier consultation. 

8.2 The Department has carried out two separate public consultations in relation to 
proposals for alcohol pricing.  From July to September 2010, the Government 
conducted a public consultation exercise on ‘Rebalancing the Licensing Act’. 
A total of 1,089 responses to the consultation were received.   

Page 34



3 
 

 
8.3   The most recent public consultation, on the Alcohol Strategy, ran from 28 

November 2012 to 6 February 2013 and around 1,450 responses were 
received.   

 
8.4  Details of the consultations and the Government’s response are available on 

the Department’s website at http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/. 
 
 

9. Guidance 
 

9.1 Not applicable. 
 
 
10. Impact 
 

10.1 The substantial majority of the amendments to the section 182 guidance occur 
in Chapter 10 (Conditions attached to premises licences and club premises 
certificates) as a result of the changes made by the Order to the 2003 Act.  A 
copy of the Impact Assessment prepared by the Department in connection with 
the Order is available on the Government website, gov.uk. 

 
10.2 An impact assessment has not been prepared for this revised guidance. 
 
 

11. Regulating small business 
 
11.1  The revised guidance applies to small businesses as the new mandatory 

condition will apply to all alcohol retailers and hence they will apply to many 
small businesses. However, the mandatory condition will only affect 
businesses that heavily discount alcohol products and it is therefore unlikely 
that all small businesses will be affected.  It is unlikely that the on-trade will be 
affected. 

 
 
12. Monitoring and review 
 

12.1 The Government will continue to review the guidance, including in relation to 
the changes made by the Order, so as to monitor its impact both on the 
licensing objectives (in general) and on the licensing authorities and other 
persons to whom this guidance is relevant (in particular). 

 
 
13.  Contact 
 

13.1 In connection with the revised section 182 guidance: 
 

• Debbie Goodier, Drugs and Alcohol Unit, the Home Office on 020 7035 
0572 or Debbie.goodier2@homeoffice.gsi.gov.uk can answer any queries 
about the revised statutory guidance.  

Page 35



4 
 

 
 13.2 The statutory guidance is available on gov.uk.  

Page 36



LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 

MEMBERS’ ATTENDANCE RECORD 

2014/2015 

 

COUNCILLOR 

 

26/06 23/07 1/10 18/11 15/1 25/2 25/3 

Ajaib 
 

P       

Bains 
 

P       

Cheema 
 

P       

Coad 
 

Ap       

Davis 
 

P       

Malik 
 

P       

Mellor 
 

P       

Munawar 
 

P       

Rasib 
 

P       

Shah 
 

P       

Sohal 
 

P       

 
P   = Present for whole meeting  P*  = Present for part of meeting 
Ap = Apologies given   Ab = Absent, no apologies given 

P
age 37

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 6



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Guidance on Predetermination/ Predisposition - To Note
	3 Minutes of the Last Meeting held on 26th June 2014
	4 Law Commission Review and Recommendations for Taxi and Private Hire Services
	LIcensing 23.07.14 Appendix A - Law Commission Summary

	5 Revision of the Secretary of State Guidance-Section 182 (June 2014)
	Licensing 23.07.14 App A- Revised Guidance
	EXPLANATORY MEMORANDUM TOREVISED GUIDANCE ISSUED UNDER SECTION 182 OF THE LICENSING ACT2003 DATED JUNE 2014
	1. This explanatory memorandum has been prepared by the Home Office (“theDepartment”) and is laid before Parliament by Command of Her Majesty.
	2. Purpose of the instrument
	3. Matters of special interest to the Joint Committee on Statutory Instruments
	4. Legislative context
	5. Territorial extent and application
	6. European Convention on Human Rights
	7. Policy background
	8. Consultation outcome
	9. Guidance
	10. Impact
	11. Regulating small business
	12. Monitoring and review
	13. Contact



	6 Members Attendance Record 2014/15

